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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

Members of the Area Commission 
Denmark Technical College  
Denmark, South Carolina 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Denmark Technical 
College, Denmark, South Carolina, a component unit of the State of South Carolina and a member institution of 
the South Carolina Technical College System, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina, as of 
June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(continued) 

 
 
 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the schedules of the College’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and 
contributions and the College’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and contributions on pages 3-10 and 
43-46 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 14, 2019, on 
our consideration of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

Orangeburg, South Carolina 
October 14, 2019 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 

As management of Denmark Technical College, we offer readers of the College’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the College for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements and the notes thereto, which follow this section. 
 
The College’s financial statements are presented in accordance with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 2100-2900, Financial Reporting Entity, and Co5, 
Colleges and Universities.  This financial statement presentation provides a comprehensive, entity-
wide perspective of the College’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net 
position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position, and cash flows, and replaces the fund-group 
perspective previously required. 
 
Financial Highlights 

• The College’s liabilities and deferred inflows exceeded its assets and deferred outflows at 
June 30, 2019 by $10,595,878.  The total unrestricted net position as of that date is 
$(17,520,567).  This amount includes a net reported unfunded pension obligation of 
$9,362,847 as required by GASB Statement No. 68 and a net unfunded other post-
employment benefits (OPEB) obligation of $7,725,618 required by GASB Statement No. 
75.  Excluding these obligations, the College’s unrestricted net position is $(432,102).  
These unfunded pension and OPEB obligations greatly affect the reported net position and 
the amount available to meet the College’s ongoing obligations from unrestricted activities. 
 

• The College’s net position decreased by $1,057,979, the result of an approximately $0.7 
million decrease in assets and deferred outflows and an increase in liabilities and deferred 
inflows of approximately $0.4 million. 

  
• Student tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprise revenues, net of scholarship allowances, 

decreased by approximately $0.5 million during the fiscal year.  Operating expenses, 
however, decreased by approximately $1.5 million.  As a result, the College’s operating 
loss decreased from about $5.5 million for the prior fiscal year to $4.8 million.  Reported 
State appropriations and other non-operating revenue decreased by nearly $0.9 million, 
though, resulting in a reduction in net position of almost $1.1 million. 

  
• The College maintained an investment in a certificate of deposit of just over $875,000 plus 

interest earnings during the entire fiscal year. 
 

• The College had no outstanding debt during the fiscal year. 
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Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The College is engaged only in Business-Type Activities (BTA) which are financed in part by fees 
charged to students for educational services.  Accordingly, its activities are reported using the three 
financial statements required for proprietary funds:  Statement of Net Position; Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.  These 
statements present financial information in a format similar to that used by the private sector. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the College at the end of the fiscal 
year, and classifies assets and liabilities into current and noncurrent.  The difference between the 
sum of total assets and deferred outflows less total liabilities and deferred inflows equals net 
position.  Net position is reported in three broad categories:  net investment in capital assets, 
restricted, and unrestricted. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position is basically a statement of net 
income that replaces the fund perspective with the entity-wide perspective.  Revenues are 
categorized as operating and non-operating, while expenses are reported by object type.  Expenses 
are reported by function in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows will aid readers in identifying the sources and uses of cash by the 
major categories of operating, capital and related financing, noncapital financing, and investing 
activities.  This statement also emphasizes the importance of state and county appropriations by 
displaying them separately from operating cash flows. 
   
Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2015, the College implemented GASB Statement No. 68, 
Accounting & Financial Reporting for Pensions, as reflected in these financial statements.  The 
Statement requires participating employers to report their proportionate share of their retirement 
plans’ net pension liability, pension expense, and deferred inflows and outflows of resources.  For 
the year ended June 30, 2019, the College’s reported net pension liability was $7,962,890.  This 
accounting treatment has a major negative impact on the presentation of the College’s net position 
and financial condition. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68 also calls for the reporting of deferred inflows and outflows of resources, 
which relate to such factors as differences occurring between expected and actual experience, 
differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, and plan 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date.   Deferred outflows of resources at 
June 30, 2019 totaled $910,665, while deferred inflows of resources amounted to $2,310,622. 
 
Beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the College implemented GASB Statement 
No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.   
The reporting is similar to that required by GASB Statement No. 68.  This Statement requires 
participating employers to report their proportionate share of their OPEB plans’ net OPEB liability, 
OPEB expense, and deferred inflows and outflows of resources.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, 
the College’s reported net OPEB liability was $6,120,887.  Deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources, which relate to factors similar to those in GASB Statement No. 68, totaled $319,690 
and $1,924,421, respectively, as of June 30, 2019.  This accounting treatment also has a major 
negative impact on the presentation of the College’s net position and financial condition. 
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Statement of Net Position 
 
The Statement of Net Position provides a snapshot of the College’s assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, deferred inflows and net position at the end of the fiscal year.  It provides the reader 
with information concerning the College’s ability to continue its operations and to determine its 
financial stability.  Assets and liabilities are separated into current, those that are due or to be paid 
within the current year, and non-current, those that are longer term in nature. 
 
Net position is divided into three major categories.  The first, net investment in capital assets, 
provides the equity in property, plant and equipment owned by the College.  The next category, 
restricted net position, can be defined as those net assets where constraints are placed on them 
either externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments 
or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation of the government itself.  The 
College’s restricted net position for capital projects for the fiscal year just ended is $2,900,000.  
The final category of net position is unrestricted.   These funds may be used to meet the College’s 
ongoing obligations from unrestricted activities. 
 
The following schedule is a condensed version of the College’s assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, deferred inflows and net position and is prepared from the Statement of Net Position. 
 

Condensed Summary of Net Position 
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(In millions) 
Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease)

Current Assets 5.5$               5.2$               0.3$              

Non-current Assets:

        Capital Assets, Net of 

          Accumulated Depreciation 4.0                 4.4                 (0.4)               

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1.2                 1.8                 (0.6)               

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 10.7               11.4               (0.7)               

Current Liabilities 2.7                 1.1                 1.6                

Non-current Liabilities 14.4               17.8               (3.4)               

Deferred Inflows of Resources 4.2                 2.0                 2.2                

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 21.3               20.9               0.4                

Net Position:

        Net Investment in Capital Assets 4.0                 4.4                 (0.4)               

        Restricted 2.9                 2.9                 -                

        Unrestricted (17.5)             (16.8)             (0.7)               

Total Net Position (10.6)$           (9.5)$             (1.1)$               
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Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial health.  Liabilities 
and deferred inflows exceed assets and deferred outflows by $10.6 million, a decrease of 
approximately $1.1 million over the prior fiscal year.  An analysis of revenues and expenses for 
the fiscal year provides details of the decrease. 
 
Assets 
 
Current assets, which are more liquid in nature, consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, 
accounts receivable net of allowances and inventories.  Current assets exceed current liabilities by 
a ratio of roughly 2 to 1.  This shows sufficient liquidity to satisfy liabilities and results in a fairly 
healthy financial condition for the College. 
 
Current assets increased by over $0.3 million, and cash and cash equivalents totaled $429,687, an 
increase of $249,423 from the prior fiscal year.   
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
The College’s investment in capital assets (land, buildings, machinery and equipment), net of 
accumulated depreciation, stands at just over $4.0 million for the fiscal year.  Annual depreciation 
expense on the College’s total capitalized assets for the year was nearly $0.4 million, almost 
completely comprising the reduction in the net investments in capital assets net position of $0.4 
million.  The College has additional planned and ongoing construction projects, with $2.9 million 
restricted for these activities.  The College does not use debt to finance the acquisition of capital 
assets. 
 
Liabilities 
 
Current liabilities increased by approximately $1.6 million.  This is primarily due to an increase in 
unearned revenue and deposits of nearly $1.2 million and an increase in accounts payable of almost 
$0.4 million.  Non-current liabilities consist of the long term portion of compensated absences and 
the net pension and OPEB liabilities discussed earlier.  The change in non-current liabilities from 
the prior year relates to a slight increase in compensated absences and significant decreases in the 
other two long term liability categories. 
 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents revenues earned and 
expenses incurred during the year under the categories of operating and non-operating.  Generally, 
operating revenues and expenses are those that are received and used to carry out the mission of 
the College; however, the College depends heavily on financial support from the State. This 
support, as well as Pell grant revenue, is reflected as non-operating revenue based on governmental 
accounting standards; therefore, the College will likely report a significant operating deficit due to 
its dependence on state and local funding.  Non-operating revenues and expenses were not 
sufficient to offset the operating deficit and resulted in a decrease in net position of approximately 
$1.1 million for the year. 
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Operating Results 
 
A summary of the College’s operating results for the fiscal year is presented below. 
 
 

Operating Results for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 

(in millions) 
       

REVENUES    2019         2018         
  Increase    
(Decrease) 

Operating Revenue:     
 Student tuition and fees, net       $   0.8             $ 1.1     $(0.3)  
 Grants and contracts            2.9             3.2       (0.3)  
 Auxiliary enterprises, Net             0.3               0.5       (0.2) 
 Other              0.1               0.1        0.0 
               4.1            4.9       (0.8)  
       
Less Operating Expenses            8.9            10.4       (1.5)  
 Net Operating Loss           (4.8)           (5.5)        0.7  
       
Non-operating Revenue:    
 State appropriations            2.1            2.7       (0.6) 
 Grants and contracts              1.5           1.8       (0.2) 
 Other              0.1           0.1       (0.1) 
 Total Non-operating Revenue            3.7            4.6       (0.9) 
       
 Decrease in net assets           (1.1)             (0.9)       (0.2) 
 Net position, beginning  of year           (9.5)           (8.6)       (0.9) 
 Net position, end of year       $(10.6)          $(9.5)     $(1.1) 
     
Total Revenue         $ 7.8        $ 9.5      $(1.7)  

 
  
 
Revenue 
 
Total revenue for June 30, 2019 decreased by over $1.7 million from the prior fiscal year.  Primary 
components of this decrease consist of reductions in State appropriations of approximately $0.6 
million and reductions in grant and contract revenue of nearly $0.5 million. 
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Sources of revenue and corresponding amounts are shown in millions in the following chart.  
 
 

 
Expenses 
 
Operating expenses for the fiscal year totaled $8.9 million, down by $1.5 million from the prior 
fiscal year.  The most significant changes occurred in the areas of Salaries and Scholarships, which 
decreased by approximately $0.4 million each, with Benefits and Supplies & Services decreasing 
by about $0.3 million each.  The decrease in benefits is impacted by the GASB 68 and GASB 75 
adjustment recognized against pension and health insurance expense. 
 
A comparison of operating expenses by classification is found in the following chart. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows is the final statement to be presented. It presents detailed information 
about the cash activity of the College during the year and provides the reader with the sources and 
uses of cash by the major categories of operating, non-capital financing, capital and related 
financing, and investing activities. This statement will likely report a use of cash in the section 
“Cash Flows from Operating Activities” due to the College’s dependence on state and local 
appropriations.  
 
The statement is divided into five parts. The first section reflects the operating cash flows and 
identifies the net cash used by the operating activities of the College. The second section reflects 
cash flows from non-operating financing activities. This section shows the cash received and spent 
for non-operating, non-investing, and non-capital financing activities. The third section expresses 
cash flows from capital and related financing activities and highlights the cash used for the 
acquisition and construction of capital and related items.  The fourth section reflects the cash flows 
from investing activities and shows the purchases, proceeds, and interest received from investing 
activities. The final section reconciles the net cash used to the operating loss reflected on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.   
 
Cash increased by over $0.2 million from last year.  
 
 
Economic Factors 
 
The economic condition of the College is dependent to a large degree on that of the state and local 
governments.  South Carolina’s economy has continued to grow its way out of the prolonged 
recession, which had significantly impacted the College through reductions in state funding for 
current operations.  The College received approximately 33 percent of its total revenue from state 
sources. The College received $20,000 from county sources during the fiscal year.  With the 
College’s service area comprising some of the poorest counties of the state, the local support 
received by the College is disproportionately the lowest of the State’s technical colleges. 
 
Governance 
 
In May, 2017, the State of South Carolina enacted legislation removing the governing authority of 
the College’s Area Commission and transferring these powers to the State Board for Technical 
and Comprehensive Education.  This action was taken after the State legislature concluded that the 
College would benefit by having the State Board provide direct leadership and assistance in areas 
such as enrollment, financial position, and program offerings more in line with the current job 
market and area employer needs.  On January 1, 2019, the governing authority was transferred 
back to a new Area Commission. 
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Summary 
 
The College continues in a period of right-sizing and resetting its operations based on changes in 
enrollment trends and economic condition.  The College remains in fairly sound financial 
condition, despite a decrease in total revenue of approximately $1.7 million.  Unrestricted net 
position, excluding GASB 68 and GASB 75 adjustments to reflect pension and OPEB liabilities, 
continue to substantially worsen the College’s perceived financial condition.  The College 
continues to provide affordable, post-secondary education to individuals from diverse educational 
and socioeconomic backgrounds seeking skills and knowledge for the emerging job market, 
culminating in associate degrees, diplomas, certificates, and transitions to four-year institutions. 
 
Contact Information 
 
Additional questions related to the Management Discussion and Analysis and the accompanying 
financial statements should be directed to Mr. Clarence F. Bonnette, Interim Vice President for 
Fiscal Affairs. 
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ASSETS
     Cash and cash equivalents 429,687$            
     Investments 879,685              
     Accounts receivable, net 4,099,213           
     Inventories 95,268                

     Total Current Assets 5,503,853           

     Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 4,024,689           

   Total Assets 9,528,542           

     Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,230,355           

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 10,758,897         

LIABILITIES
     Accounts payable 605,519              
     Accrued payroll and related liabilities 263,980              
     Unearned revenue and deposits 1,821,819           
     Funds held for others 14,081                
     Compensated absences payable, current portion 53,587                

     Total Current Liabilities 2,758,986           

     Compensated absences payable, long term portion 276,969              
     Net pension liability 7,962,890           
     Net OPEB liability 6,120,887           

     Total Non-Current Liabilities 14,360,746         

 Total Liabilities 17,119,732         

     Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,235,043           

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,354,775         

NET POSITION
     Net investment in capital assets 4,024,689           
     Restricted - capital projects 2,900,000           
     Unrestricted - unfunded pension and OPEB obligation (17,088,465)        
     Unrestricted (432,102)             

 Total Net Position (10,595,878)$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019
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REVENUES
  Operating Revenue:
   Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $1,358,758) 774,768$            
   Federal grants and contracts 2,492,266           
   State grants and contracts 407,266              
   Other grants and contracts 61,554                
   Sales and services of educational departments 597                     
   Auxiliary enterprises (net of scholarship allowances of $653,930) 348,490              
   Other revenues 46,416                

     Total Operating Revenue 4,131,357           

EXPENSES
  Operating Expenses:
   Salaries 4,176,936           
   Employee benefits 794,550              
   Scholarships 102,319              
   Utilities 509,216              
   Supplies and other services 2,969,274           
   Depreciation 368,919              

     Total Operating Expenses 8,921,214           

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (4,789,857)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
  State appropriations 2,132,251           
  County appropriations 20,000                
  Interest income 3,081                  
  Federal grants and contracts 1,344,652           
  State and local grants and contracts 228,332              
  Other nonoperating revenue (expense) 3,562                  

     Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 3,731,878           

     Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (1,057,979)          

     Net Position Beginning of Year (9,537,899)          

     Net Position End of Year (10,595,878)$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances) 902,856$         
  Federal, state and local grants and contracts 3,938,629        
  Auxiliary enterprise charges (net of scholarship allowances) 348,490           
  Sales and services of educational departments 597                  
  Other receipts 46,416             
  Payments to vendors (4,607,206)       
  Payments to employees (4,011,219)       
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (3,381,437)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  State appropriations 2,132,251        
  County appropriations 20,000             
  Funds held for others (65,093)            
  Non-operating federal, state and local grants and contracts 1,543,451        
  Other receipts 9                      
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 3,630,618        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Sale of capital assets 3,847               
  Purchase of capital assets (3,605)              
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities 242                  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchase of investments (3,081)              
  Interest on investments 3,081               
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities -                   

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 249,423           

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 180,264           

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 429,687$         

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenues (Expenses) to Net Cash
   Used in Operating Activities
Operating expenses over revenue (4,789,857)$     
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation expense 368,919           
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
     Receivables, net (56,970)            
     Inventories 1,996               
     Deferred outflows 570,214           
     Accounts payable 373,594           
     Accrued payroll and related liabilities 144,872           
     Unearned revenue and deposits 1,186,292        
     Compensated absences 20,845             
     Deferred inflows 2,257,601        
     Net pension liability (2,216,706)       
     Net OPEB liability (1,242,237)       

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (3,381,437)$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019



DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A.  Nature of Operations:  Denmark Technical College (the “College”), a member institution of 
the South Carolina Technical College System, provides a range of educational programs to meet 
the needs of the adult population of Allendale, Bamberg, and Barnwell counties.  Included in this 
range of programs are technical and occupational associate degree, diploma and certificate 
curricula that are consistent with the needs of employers in the College’s service area.  As an 
integral part of this mission, the College provides a program of continuing education designed to 
satisfy the occupational demands of employers through retraining and upgrading the skills of 
individual employees. The College also provides a variety of developmental education programs, 
support services and offerings to assist students in meeting their personal and professional 
educational objectives. 
 
B.  Reporting Entity:  The financial reporting entity, as defined by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), consists of the discrete component units of the State, organizations for 
which the State is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the State are such that exclusion could cause the financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete.  Accordingly, the financial statements include the 
accounts of Denmark Technical College, as a discrete component unit of the State.   
 
C.  Financial Statements:  The financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB 
Codification Sections 2100-2900, Financial Reporting Entity, and Co5, Colleges and Universities.  
This financial statement presentation provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the 
College’s assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows 
that replaces the fund-group perspective previously required. 
 
D.  Basis of Accounting: For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-
purpose government entity engaged only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the College’s 
financial statements have been presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and 
expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  Student tuition and auxiliary 
enterprise fees are presented net of scholarships and fellowships applied to student accounts, while 
stipends and other payments made directly are presented as scholarship expenses.  All significant 
intra-institutional transactions have been eliminated. 
 
E.  Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the College 
considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents.  Funds invested through the State of South Carolina State Treasurer’s Office 
are considered cash equivalents.   
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES…continued 
 
F.  Investments: Deposits and investments for the College are governed by the South Carolina 
Code of Laws, Section 11-9-660, “Investment of Funds.”  The GASB Codification Section 150, 
Investments, requires disclosures related to deposit risks, such as custodial credit risk, and 
investment risks, such as credit risk (including custodial credit risk and concentrations of credit 
risks) and interest rate risk. The College accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance 
with the GASB Codification. Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the fair value of investments 
are reported as a component of investment income in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets. 
 
G.  Accounts Receivable:  Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students, gift 
pledges and auxiliary enterprise services provided to students, faculty and staff.  Accounts 
receivable also include amounts due from the Federal government, state and local governments, or 
private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the 
College’s grants and contracts.  Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible 
amounts. 
 
H.  Inventories:  Inventories for internal use are valued at cost.  Inventories for resale are carried 
at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") basis. 
 
I.  Capital Assets:  Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or fair market value 
at the date of donation in the case of gifts.  The College follows capitalization guidelines established 
by the State of South Carolina.  All land is capitalized, regardless of cost.  Qualifying improvements 
that rest in or on the land itself are recorded as depreciable land improvements.  Major additions, 
renovations, and other improvements that add to the usable space, prepare existing buildings for 
new uses, or extend the useful life of an existing building are capitalized.  The College capitalizes 
movable personal property with a unit value in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of two 
years and depreciable land improvements, buildings and improvements, and intangible assets 
costing in excess of $100,000.  Routine repairs and maintenance and library materials are charged to 
operating expenses in the year in which the expense was incurred. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets, generally 15 to 50 years for buildings and improvements and land improvements and 2 to 25 
years for machinery, equipment, and vehicles.  The College has adopted a monthly depreciation 
convention, with depreciation calculated on a prorated amount in the years of acquisition and 
disposition. 
 
J.  Unearned Revenues and Deposits:  Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition 
and fees and certain auxiliary activities prior to the end of the fiscal year but related to the 
subsequent accounting period.  Unearned revenues also include amounts received from grant and 
contract sponsors that have not yet been earned.  Total unearned revenues at June 30, 2019 
amounted to $1,706,769. 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES…continued 
 
Deposits represent dormitory room deposits, security deposits for possible room damage and key 
loss, student fee refunds, and other miscellaneous deposits.  Student deposits are recognized as 
revenue during the semester for which the fee is applicable and earned when the deposit is 
nonrefundable to the student under the forfeit terms of the agreement.  Student deposits at 
June 30, 2019 totaled $115,050. 
 
K.  Compensated Absences:  Employee vacation pay expense is accrued at year-end for financial 
statement purposes.  The liability and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as a component of 
both current and long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and as a component of salaries 
and employee benefits expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
L.  Net Position:  The College’s net position is classified as follows: 
 
 Net investment in capital assets: This represents the College’s total investment in capital assets, 

net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.  To the extent debt has been 
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component 
of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

 
 Restricted net position - expendable:  Restricted expendable net position include resources in 

which the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with 
restrictions imposed by external third parties.  Restricted expendable net position consists of 
amounts restricted for capital improvements. 

  
 Unrestricted net position:  Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from student 

tuition and fees, appropriations, and sales and services of educational departments and auxiliary 
enterprises.  These resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general 
operations of the College, and may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet 
current expenses for any purpose.  These resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are 
substantially self-supporting activities that provide services for students, faculty and staff. 

 
The College’s policy for applying expenses that can use both restricted and unrestricted resources is 
delegated to the departmental administrative level.  General practice is to first apply the expense to 
restricted resources and then to unrestricted resources. 
 
M.  Income Taxes:  The College is exempt from income taxes under the Internal Revenue Code. 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES…continued 
 
N.  Classification of Revenues:  The College has classified its revenues as either operating or non-
operating revenues according to the following criteria: 

 
 Operating revenues:  Operating revenues generally result from exchange transactions to provide 

goods or services related to the College’s principal ongoing operations.  These revenues include 
(1) student tuition and fees received in exchange for providing educational services, housing, and 
other related services to students; (2) receipts for scholarships where the provider has identified 
the student recipients; (3) fees received from organizations and individuals in exchange for 
miscellaneous goods and services provided by the College; and (4) grants and contracts that are 
essentially the same as contracts for services that finance programs the College would not 
otherwise undertake. 

 
 Non-operating revenues:  Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics 

of non-exchange transactions.  These revenues include gifts and contributions, appropriations, 
investment income, and any grants and contracts that are not classified as operating revenue or 
restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for capital purposes. 

 
O.  Auxiliary Enterprises and Internal Service Activities:  Auxiliary enterprise revenues 
primarily represent revenues generated by bookstores, food services and dormitories.  Revenues of 
internal service and auxiliary enterprise activities and the related expenditures of College 
departments have been eliminated. 
 
P.   Pensions:  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the South Carolina Retirement System and the South Carolina Police Officers 
Retirement System and additions to/deductions from the Systems’ fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis of accounting as they are reported by the Systems.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Q.   Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB):  For purposes of measuring the 
net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and 
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the South Carolina Retiree Health 
Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust 
Fund (SCLTDITF) and additions to/deductions from the Trust Funds’ fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis of accounting as they are reported by the Trust Funds.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plans.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES…continued 
 
R.  Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and affect disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  Significant estimates inherent in the preparation of financial 
statements include estimates of the allowance for uncollectible accounts and useful lives of 
depreciable assets. 
 
 
NOTE 2—STATE APPROPRIATIONS 
 
State funds for the South Carolina Technical College System are appropriated to the State Board 
for Technical and Comprehensive Education (the Board), and the Board allocates funds budgeted 
for the technical colleges in a uniform and equitable manner.  Appropriations are recognized as 
revenue when received and available.  Amounts that are not expended by fiscal year-end lapse 
and are required to be returned to the General Fund of the State unless the Board receives 
authorization from the General Assembly to carry the funds over to the next year. 
 
The following is a reconciliation of the state appropriations revenue reported in the financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
NON-CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS 
Appropriations per State Board Allocation      $ 2,132,251 
 
Total non-capital appropriations recorded as current year revenue             $ 2,132,251 
 
CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS 
Appropriations per State Board Allocation      $               - 
 
Total capital appropriations recorded as current year revenue                         $               - 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 3—CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS 
 
DEPOSITS 
State Law requires that a bank or savings and loan association receiving State funds must secure 
the deposits by deposit insurance, surety bonds, collateral securities, or letters of credit to protect 
the State against any loss.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that the College will not be able to recover deposits if 
the depository financial institution fails, or to recover the value of collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party if the counterparty to the deposit transaction fails.  The 
College’s policy concerning credit risk permits the College President to invest surplus funds in 
approved financial institutions’ investment accounts.  The College has contracted with a local 
financial institution to collateralize all deposits in excess of federally insured amounts with 
securities held in the College’s name. 
 
The cash and cash equivalent deposits with a bank balance of $525,834 for Denmark Technical 
College at June 30, 2019, were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or 
collateralized with securities held by the College’s custodial bank in the College’s name.  
 
INVESTMENTS  
The College is authorized, by the South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 11-9-660, to invest in 
obligations of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State of South Carolina and 
its political subdivisions, collateralized or federally insured certificates of deposit, and 
collateralized repurchase agreements. 
 
The College’s investment at June 30, 2019 consisted of a collateralized bank certificate of 
deposit of $879,685 yielding .50% maturing August 11, 2019 and is reported at fair value.  
Subsequent to year end, a portion of the proceeds from this certificate were withdrawn and 
deposited into one of the College’s checking accounts.  The remainder was reinvested in a 
certificate of deposit for six months yielding .50%.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk  
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty 
to a transaction, the College will not be able to recover the investment’s value or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of the outside party.  The College does not have a formally 
adopted policy on custodial credit risk. 
 
The College’s investment in a bank collateralized certificate of deposit at June 30, 2019 was held 
by the College.  The College recognized no losses due to the default by counterparties to 
investment transactions. 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 3—CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS…continued 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit Risk is the risk that an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation.  The College does not have a formally adopted policy on credit risk. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s 
investment in a single issuer.  The College does not have a formally adopted policy on 
concentration of credit risk.   
 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment.  It occurs because potential purchasers of debt securities will not 
agree to pay face value for those securities if interest rates subsequently increase, thereby 
affording potential purchasers more favorable rates on essentially equivalent securities. The 
College does not have a formally adopted policy concerning interest rate risk. 
 
The following schedule reconciles cash and investments reported on the Statement of Net 
Position to footnote disclosure provided for deposits and investments. 
 
Statement of Net Position: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents        $    429,687 
Investments                            879,685 
 
Total Statement of Net Position       $ 1,309,372 
 
Disclosure, Cash, Deposits and Investments:  
Carrying value of deposits: 
   Not held by State Treasurer        $    429,687 
   Investment not held by State Treasurer            879,685 
 
Total Disclosure, Cash, Deposits and Investments     $ 1,309,372 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 



DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 
 
 

NOTE 4—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2019 including applicable allowances, were as follows: 
 
Receivables: 
   Student Accounts  $    332,611 
   Other Accounts            80,067 
   Due from Federal and Other Grantors       1,116,056 
   Due from State – Capital Appropriations     2,900,000 
   Gross Receivables    4,428,734 
Less: Allowance for Uncollectible: 
   Student Accounts     (329,521) 
   Total Allowance for Uncollectible        (329,521) 
Receivables, Net  $ 4,099,213 
 
Allowances for losses for student accounts receivable are established based upon actual losses 
experienced in prior years and evaluations of the current account portfolio. 
 
 
NOTE 5—CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

6/30/2018 Increases Decreases 6/30/2019
Capital Assets not being depreciated
   Land and Improvements 174,020$         174,020$         
   Construction in Progress 14,298             3,605               -                       17,903             

188,318           3,605               -                       191,923           

Other Capital Assets:
   Buildings and Improvements 8,669,762        -                       -                       8,669,762        
   Machinery, Equipment and Other 3,814,930        -                       (183,581)          3,631,349        
   Vehicles 673,025           -                       (135,981)          537,044           
   Intangibles 151,286           -                       -                       151,286           
Total Other Capital Assets at Historical Cost 13,309,003      -                       (319,562)          12,989,441      

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
   Buildings and Improvements 4,908,141        146,460           -                       5,054,601        
   Machinery, Equipment and Other 3,412,466        202,643           (183,287)          3,431,822        
   Vehicles 635,131           19,816             (135,981)          518,966           
   Intangibles 151,286           -                       -                       151,286           
Total Accumulated Depreciation 9,107,024        368,919           (319,268)          9,156,675        

Other Capital Assets, Net 4,201,979        (368,919)          (294)                 3,832,766        

Capital Assets, Net 4,390,297$      (365,314)$        (294)$               4,024,689$      
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S) 
 
Plan Descriptions/Membership 
The majority of employees of the Denmark Technical College are covered by a retirement plan 
through the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Retirement Division of the South Carolina 
Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA).  Generally, all full-time or part-time equivalent 
State employees in a permanent position are required to participate in and contribute to the SCRS 
as a condition of employment.  The SCRS plan provides life-time monthly retirement annuity 
benefits to eligible members as well as disability, survivor options, annual benefit adjustments, 
and incidental death benefits to eligible employees and retired members.  An employee member 
of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two 
member.  An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after 
July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member. 
 
As an alternative to membership in SCRS, newly hired State, public school, and higher education 
employees and individuals newly elected to the S.C. General Assembly beginning with the 
November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State Optional Retirement 
Program (ORP), a defined contribution plan.  State ORP participants direct the investment of 
their funds into an account administered by one of four third party record keepers.  PEBA 
assumes no liability for State ORP benefits.  The benefits are the liability of the third party 
record keepers.  Employee and employer contributions to the ORP are at the same rates as SCRS.  
A direct remittance is required from the employer to the member’s account with the ORP vendor 
for the employee contribution and a portion of the employer contribution (5 percent).  A direct 
remittance is required to SCRS for the remaining portion of the employer contribution and an 
incidental death benefit contribution, if applicable, which is retained by SCRS. 
 
The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) is a cost-sharing multiple- 
employer defined benefit pension plan.  Generally, to be eligible for PORS membership, 
employees must be required by the terms of their employment, by election or appointment, to 
preserve public order, protect life and property, and detect crimes in the State; to prevent and 
control property destruction by fire; or to serve as a peace officer employed by certain State 
agencies.  Probate judges and coroners may elect membership in PORS.  Magistrates are 
required to participate in PORS.  PORS members, other than magistrates and probate judges, 
must also earn at least $2,000 per year and devote at least 1,600 hours per year to this work, 
unless exempted by statute.  This plan provides for lifetime monthly annuity benefits as well as 
disability, survivor benefits and incidental death benefits to eligible employees and retirees.  In 
addition, participating employers in the PORS may elect to contribute to the accidental death 
program which provides annuity benefits to beneficiaries of police officers and firemen killed in 
the actual performance of their duties.  These benefits are independent of any other retirement 
benefits available to the beneficiary.  An employee member of the system with an effective date 
of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member.  An employee member of the 
system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member. 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds.  The CAFR is 
publicly available on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by 
submitting a request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, South Carolina 29223.  PEBA 
is considered a division of the primary government of the State of South Carolina and therefore, 
retirement trust fund financial information is also included in the State’s CAFR. 
 
Benefits 
Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.  PEBA does not have 
the authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legislative change in the code of laws.  
Key elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and 
average final compensation/current annual salary.  A brief summary of benefit terms for each 
system is presented below. 
 
SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of 
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years of credited service 
regardless of age.  A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable 
at age 55 with 25 years of service credit.  A Class Three member who has separated from service 
with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon 
satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member’s age and the member’s 
creditable service equals at least 90 years.  Both Class Two and Class Three members are 
eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year 
earned service requirement, respectively.  An incidental death benefit is also available to 
beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit 
program. 
 
The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by 
the lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1.  Only those annuitants in receipt of 
a benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.  Members who retire 
under the early retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the 
benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the 
date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired. 
 
PORS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of 
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless 
of age.  A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years 
of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 27 years of service 
regardless of age.  Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a deferred 
annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service, respectively.  An incidental death 
benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who 
participate in the death benefit program.  Accidental death benefits are also provided upon the 
death of an active member working for a covered employer whose death was a natural and 
proximate result of an injury incurred while in the performance of duty. 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the 
lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1.  Only those annuitants in receipt of a 
benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. 
 
Contributions 
Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.  If the scheduled 
employee and employer contributions provided in statute or the rates last adopted by the board 
are insufficient to maintain the amortization period set in statute, the board shall increase 
employer contribution rates as necessary. 
 
After June 30, 2027, if the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding 
purposes shows a ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of 
the system (the funded ratio) that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent, then the board, 
effective on the following July 1, may decrease the then current contribution rates upon making a 
finding that the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than eighty-five percent.  If 
contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this provision, and the most recent annual actuarial 
valuation of the system shows a funded ratio of less than eighty-five percent, then effective on 
the following July 1, and annually thereafter as necessary, the board shall increase the then 
current contribution rates until a subsequent annual actuarial valuation of the system shows a 
funded ratio that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent. 
 
The Retirement System Funding and Administration Act establishes a ceiling on employee 
contribution rates at 9 percent and 9.75 percent for SCRS and PORS, respectively.  The 
employer contribution rates will continue to increase annually by 1 percent through July 1, 2022.  
The legislation’s ultimate scheduled employer rate is 18.56 percent for SCRS and 21.24 percent 
for PORS.  The amortization period is scheduled to be reduced one year for each of the next ten 
years to a twenty year amortization period. 
 
Required employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 
 SCRS 
      Employee Class Two   9.00% of earnable compensation 
      Employee Class Three   9.00% of earnable compensation 
 State ORP 
      Employee     9.00% of earnable compensation 
 PORS 
      Employee Class Two   9.75% of earnable compensation 
      Employee Class Three   9.75% of earnable compensation 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
Required employer contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 
 
 SCRS 
      Employer Class Two   14.41% of earnable compensation 
      Employer Class Three   14.41% of earnable compensation 
      Employer Incidental Death Benefit   0.15% of earnable compensation 
 State ORP 
      Employer Contribution   14.41% of earnable compensation 
      Employer Incidental Death Benefit   0.15% of earnable compensation 
 PORS 
      Employer Class Two   16.84% of earnable compensation 
      Employer Class Three   16.84% of earnable compensation 

     Employer Incidental Death Benefit   0.20% of earnable compensation 
      Employer Accidental Death Program   0.20% of earnable compensation 
 
The College’s actual contributions to the SCRS (including ORP of $13,095 in 2019, $5,361 in 
2018 and $0 in 2017) for the years ended June 30, 2019, 2018, and 2017 were approximately 
$414,893, $488,426, and $509,764, respectively.  The College’s actual contributions to the 
PORS for these same periods were approximately $6,787, $9,210, and $16,032.  In addition, the 
College paid approximately $5,025, $5,615, and $6,933 in employer incidental death benefit 
program contributions to these programs for the years ended June 30, 2019, 2018, and 2017, 
respectively.  The College also paid accidental death program contributions totaling $95, $116, 
and $232 to the PORS for the same respective periods. 
 
The College contributed 100% of the required contributions for the current year and each of the 
two preceding years. 
 
Payables to the Pension Plan 
As of June 30, 2019, the College had $134,856 in payables outstanding to the pension plans for 
its legally required contributions. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 
Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about 
future employment, mortality, and future salary increases.  Amounts determined regarding the 
net pension liability are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  South Carolina state statute requires 
that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period.  An 
experience report on the Systems was most recently issued for the period ended June 30, 2015. 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
The June 30, 2018, total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information were 
determined by the Systems’ consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company and are 
based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2017.  The total pension liability was 
rolled forward from the valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2018, using 
generally accepted actuarial principles. 
 
The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to 
calculate the total pension liability as of June 30, 2018. 
 
 SCRS PORS 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal 
Actuarial assumptions: 
 
   Investment rate of return 
 
   Projected salary increases 
 
   Includes inflation at 
 
   Benefit adjustments 
 

 
 

7.25% 
 

3.0% to 12.5% (varies by service) 
 

2.25% 
 

lesser of 1% or $500 annually 

 
 

7.25% 
 

3.5% to 9.5% (varies by service) 
 

2.25% 
 

lesser of 1% or $500 annually 

 
The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender.  
The base mortality assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table 
(2016 PRSC), was developed using the Systems’ mortality experience.  These base rates are 
adjusted for future improvement in mortality using published Scale AA projected from the year 
2016. 
 
Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2018, total pension liability are as 
follows: 
 
Former Job Class Males Females 
Educators 2016 PRSC Males 

multiplied by 92% 
2016 PRSC Females 
multiplied by 98% 

General Employees and Members 
of the General Assembly 

2016 PRSC Males 
multiplied by 100% 

2016 PRSC Females 
multiplied by 111% 

Public Safety and Firefighters 2016 PRSC Males  
multiplied by 125% 

2016 PRSC Females 
multiplied by 111% 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
Net Pension Liability 
The net pension liability is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular 
system’s total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB 67 less that system’s 
fiduciary net position.  The College’s proportionate share of the liabilities were determined based 
on the percentage of the College’s employer contributions paid relative to total employer 
contributions paid to each system for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
The College’s share of PEBA’s total net pension liability for the retirement systems as of 
June 30, 2019, expressed in terms of dollars and percentages are as follows: 
 
                               SCRS                                         PORS    
                   6/30/2019              6/30/2018               6/30/2019             6/30/2018   
PEBA: 
  Total Pension Liability  $48,821,730,067  $48,244,437,494  $7,403,972,673 $7,013,684,001 
  Plan Fiduciary Net Position  26,414,916,370  25,732,829,268  4,570,430,247  4,274,123,178 
 
  Net Pension Liability  22,406,813,697  22,511,608,226  2,833,542,426   2,739,560,823 
 
  Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
    as a Percentage of the 
    Total Pension Liability  54.1%  53.3%  61.7%  60.9% 
 
Denmark Technical College: 
  Share of Net Pension Liability   $7,853,647   $9,965,664   $109,243   $213,932 
  Percentage  .035050%  .044269%  .003855%  .007809% 
 
No change has been reported in the College’s share of the total systems’ liabilities since the 
June 30, 2018 measurement date. 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

           Deferred Outflows of Resources           Deferred Inflows of Resources 
                  SCRS         PORS         Total                SCRS        PORS        Total 
  Differences between expected and 
    actual experience                                 $      14,177    $  3,366     $  17,543   $      46,217   $           -    $   46,217 

  Changes of assumptions                              311,589        7,203       318,792                    -                 -                  - 

  Net difference between projected 
    and actual earnings on pension 
    plan investments                                        124,755        2,185       126,940                    -                 -                  - 

  Changes in proportion and differences 
    between College contributions and 
    proportionate share of contributions           20,590               -          20,590      2,151,922     112,483     2,264,405 

  College contributions subsequent to 
    the measurement date                                419,822        6,978       426,800                     -                 -                   - 
                                                                 $    890,933    $19,732     $910,665    $2,198,139   $112,483   $2,310,622 
 
The amount $426,800 reported as deferred outflows relating to pensions resulting from the 
College’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.  The following schedule reflects the 
amortization of the net balance of remaining deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources at June 30, 
2019. 
 
    Measurement Period 
       Ending June 30  
    2020   $(653,527) 
    2021     (525,901) 
    2022     (589,989) 
    2023       (57,340) 
    Thereafter                - 
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 30 year capital 
market assumptions.  The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed 
using an arithmetic building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and 
market based inputs.  Expected returns are net of investment fees. 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset 
allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal year.  The long-term expected rate of 
return is produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation 
percentage and adding expected inflation and is summarized in the following table.  For actuarial 
purposes, the 7.25% assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation of the total 
pension liability includes a 5.00% real rate of return and a 2.25% inflation component. 
 
                                                                                                                                  Long Term 
                                                                                                     Expected                Expected 
                                                                   Target Asset      Arithmetic Real      Portfolio Real 
   Asset Class                                               Allocation         Rate of Return      Rate of Return 
   Global Equity        47.0% 
        Global Public Equity      33.0%          6.99%       2.31% 
        Private Equity        9.0%           8.73%        0.79% 
        Equity Options Strategies      5.0%          5.52%      0.28% 
   Real Assets         10.0% 
        Real Estate (Private)       6.0%            3.54%        0.21% 
        Real Estate (REITs)       2.0%            5.46%        0.11% 
        Infrastructure        2.0%            5.09%        0.10% 
   Opportunistic       13.0% 
        GTAA/Risk Parity       8.0%            3.75%        0.30% 
        Hedge Funds (non-PA)       2.0%            3.45%        0.07% 
        Other Opportunistic Strategies      3.0%            3.75%        0.11% 
   Diversified Credit        18.0%  
        Mixed Credit        6.0%            3.05%        0.18% 
        Emerging Markets Debt       5.0%            3.94%        0.20% 
        Private Debt        7.0%            3.89%        0.27% 
   Conservative Fixed Income    12.0% 
        Core Fixed Income     10.0%           0.94%       0.09% 
        Cash and Short Duration (Net)       2.0%            0.34%        0.01% 
 
   Total Expected Real Return   100.0%          5.03% 
   Inflation for Actuarial Purposes            2.25%  
 
   Total Expected Nominal Return           7.28% 
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NOTE 6—PENSION PLAN(S)…continued 
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating 
employers in SCRS and PORS will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on 
provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws.  Based on those assumptions, each system’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
The following table presents the College’s share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the College’s share of the net pension liability would be 
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00% lower (6.25%) or 1.00% higher (8.25%) 
than the current rate. 
 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

 
 

System 
1.00% Decrease 

(6.25%) 
Current Discount Rate 

(7.25%) 
1.00% Increase 

(8.25%) 
SCRS       $10,035,503           $7,853,647         $6,293,829 
PORS              147,274                109,243                78,093 

 
Additional Financial and Actuarial Information 
Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is 
available in the systems’ audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  
Additional actuarial information is available in the accounting and financial reporting actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2018. 
 
 
NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  
 
Plan Descriptions 
The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds (OPEB Trusts), which collectively refers to 
the South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina 
Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund (SCLTDITF), were established by the State of South 
Carolina as Act 195, which became effective in May, 2008.  The SCRHITF was created to fund 
and account for the employer costs of the State’s retiree health and dental plans.  The SCLTDITF 
was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the State’s Basic Long-Term 
Disability Income Benefit Plan. 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 
In accordance with Act 195, the OPEB Trusts are administered by the PEBA - Insurance 
Benefits and the State Treasurer is the custodian of the funds held in trust.  The Board of 
Directors of PEBA has been designated as the Trustee. 
 
The OPEB Trusts are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plans.  Article 5 of 
the State Code of Laws defines the two plans and authorizes the Trustee to at any time adjust the 
plans, including its benefits and contributions, as necessary to insure the fiscal stability of the 
plans.  In accordance with the South Carolina Code of Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, 
the State provides post-employment health and dental and long-term disability benefits to retired 
State and school district employees and their covered dependents. 
 
Benefits 
 
The SCRHITF is a healthcare plan that covers retired employees of the State of South Carolina, 
including all agencies, and public school districts.  The SCRHITF provides health and dental 
insurance benefits to eligible retirees.  Generally, retirees are eligible for the health and dental 
benefits if they have established at least ten years of retirement service credit.  For new hires 
beginning employment May 2, 2008 and after, retirees are eligible for benefits if they have 
established 25 years of service for 100% employer funding and 15-24 years of service for 50% 
employer funding. 
 
The SCLTDITF is a long-term disability plan that covers employees of the State of South 
Carolina, including all agencies and public school districts and all participating local 
governmental entities.  The SCLTDITF provides disability payments to eligible employees that 
have been approved for disability. 
 
Contributions and Funding Policies 
Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires the post-
employment and long-term disability benefits to be funded through non-employer and employer 
contributions for active employees and retirees to the PEBA – Insurance Benefits.  Non-
employer contributions consist of an annual appropriation by the General Assembly and the 
statutorily required transfer from PEBA – Insurance Benefits reserves. 
 
The SCRHITF is funded through participating employers that are mandated by State statute to 
contribute at a rate assessed each year by the Department of Administration Executive Budget 
Office on active employee covered payroll.  The surcharge was 6.05% of annual covered payroll 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, 5.50% of annual covered payroll for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018 and 5.33% of annual covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  The 
College paid approximately $201,728, $204,829 and $244,303 applicable to the surcharge 
included with the employer contribution for retirement benefits for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Other sources of funding for the SCRHITF include 
the implicit subsidy, which is an age-related subsidy inherent in the healthcare premiums 
structure, and investment income. 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 
The SCLTDITF is funded through employer contributions for active employees that elect health 
insurance coverage.  For this group of active employees, PEBA – Insurance Benefits bills and 
collects premiums charged to State agencies, public school districts and other participating local 
governments.  The monthly premium per active employee paid was $3.22 for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017.  The College recorded employer contributions expenses 
applicable to these insurance benefits for active employees of approximately $2,734, $3,130 and 
$3,903 for the years ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Employees are not 
required to contribute to the plan.  The SCLTDITF is also funded through investment income. 
 
PEBA – Insurance Benefits issues audited financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the OPEB Trust Funds.  This information is publicly available through the PEBA 
– Insurance Benefits’ link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov or a copy may be obtained by 
submitting a request to PEBA – Insurance Benefits, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, South 
Carolina 29223.  PEBA is considered a division of the primary government of the State of South 
Carolina and therefore, OPEB Trust Fund financial information is also included in the 
comprehensive annual financial report of the state. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Actuarially 
determined amounts regarding the net OPEB liability are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plans (as 
understood by the employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at 
the time of valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer 
and plan members to that point. 
 
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCRHITF: 
 
 Valuation Date:  June 30, 2017 
 Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal 
 Inflation:   2.25% 
 Investment Rate of Return: 4.00%, net of OPEB Plan investment expense, including 
     inflation 
 Single Discount Rate:  3.62% as of June 30, 2018 
 Demographic Assumptions: Based on the experience study performed for the South 
     Carolina Retirement Systems for the five-year period 
     ended June 30, 2015 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 
Mortality:   For healthy retirees, the 2016 Public Retirees of South 

     Carolina Mortality Table for Males and the 2016 Public 
     Retirees of South Carolina Mortality Table for Females 
     are used with fully generational mortality projections 
     based on Scale AA from the year 2016.  Multipliers 
     are applied to the base tables based on gender and 
     employment type. 

Health Care Trend Rate: Initial trend starting at 6.75% and gradually decreasing to 
     an ultimate trend rate of 4.15% over a period of 14 years 

Retiree Participation:  79% for retirees who are eligible for funded premiums 
    59% participation for retirees who are eligible for Partial 
    Funded Premiums 
    20% participation for retirees who are eligible for Non- 
    Funded Premiums 
Notes:    There were no benefit changes during the current year; 
    the discount rate changed from 3.59% as of June 30, 2017 
    to 3.62% as of June 30, 2018 

 
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCLTDITF: 
 
 Valuation Date:  June 30, 2017 
 Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal 
 Inflation:   2.25% 
 Investment Rate of Return: 4.00%, net of Plan investment expense, including inflation 
 Single Discount Rate:  3.91% as of June 30, 2018 
 Salary, Termination, and Based on the experience study performed for the South 
 Retirement Rates:  Carolina Retirement Systems for the five-year period 
     ended June 30, 2015 
 Disability Incidence:  The rates used in the valuation are based on the rates 
     developed for the South Carolina Retirement Systems 
     pension plans 
 Disability Recovery:  For participants in payment, 1987 CGDT Group Disability; 
     for active employees, 60% were assumed to recover after 
     the first year and 92% were assumed to recover after the 

first two years 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 

 Offsets:   40% are assumed to be eligible for Social Security benefits; 
     assumed percentage who will be eligible for a pension plan 
     offset varies based on employee group 
 Expenses:   Third party administrative expenses were included in the 
     benefit projections 
 Notes:    The discount rate changed from 3.87% as of June 30, 2017 
     to 3.91% as of June 30, 2018 
 
Roll Forward Disclosures 
The actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2017.  Update procedures were used to roll 
forward the total OPEB liability to June 30, 2018. 
 
Payables to the OPEB Plans 
As of June 30, 2019, the College had $27,851 in payables outstanding to the OPEB plans for its 
legally required contributions. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
The net OPEB liability is calculated separately for each OPEB Trust Fund and represents that 
particular trust’s total OPEB liability determined in accordance with GASB 74 less that trust’s 
fiduciary net position.  The College’s proportionate share of the liabilities were determined by 
PEBA based on the percentage of the College’s employer contributions paid relative to total 
employer contributions paid to each plan for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
The College’s share of PEBA’s total net OPEB liability for its plans as of June 30, 2019, 
expressed in terms of dollars and percentages are as follows: 
 
                                            SCRHITF                SCLTDITF              Total OPEB  
PEBA: 
  Total OPEB Liability $15,387,115,010 $39,261,091 $15,426,376,101 
  Plan Fiduciary Net Position   1,216,530,062 36,199,863  1,252,729,925 
 
  Net OPEB Liability  14,170,584,948 3,061,228 14,173,646,176 
 
  Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
    Percentage of Total OPEB Liability 7.91% 92.20% 
 
Denmark Technical College: 
  Share of Net OPEB Liability  $6,119,567 $1,320 $6,120,887 
  Percentage .043185% .043115% 
 
No change has been reported in the College’s share of the total plans’ liabilities since the 
June 30, 2018 measurement date. 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

           Deferred Outflows of Resources           Deferred Inflows of Resources 
             SCRHITF   SCLTDITF     Total           SCRHITF   SCLTDITF   Total 
  Differences between expected and 
    actual experience  $ 91,674  $  - $ 91,674 $   2,132  $ 81 $ 2,213 

  Changes of assumptions   -  -    498,317   86  498,403 

  Net difference between projected 
    and actual earnings on OPEB 
    plan investments  23,465  767  24,232  -  -  - 

  Changes in proportion and differences 
    between College contributions and 
    proportionate share of contributions  -  -  -  1,423,608  197  1,423,805 

  Implicit subsidy   (678)  -  (678)  -  -  -  

  College contributions subsequent to 
    the measurement date  201,728  2,734  204,462  -  -  - 
 $ 316,189 $ 3,501 $ 319,690 $ 1,924,057 $ 364 $ 1,924,421 
 
The amount $204,462 ($201,728 + $2,734) reported as deferred outflows of resources relating to 
OPEB resulting from the College’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.  The 
following schedule reflects the amortization of the net balance of remaining deferred 
outflows/(inflows) of resources at June 30, 2019. 
 
    Measurement Period 
       Ending June 30  
    2020   $(302,396) 
    2021     (302,396) 
    2022     (302,396) 
    2023     (305,003) 
    Thereafter    (596,324)                   
 
Single Discount Rate 
The Single Discount Rate of 3.62% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the 
SCRHITF.  The accounting policy for this plan is to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the 
prevailing municipal bond rate.  Due to the plan’s investment and funding policies, the difference 
between a blended discount rate and the municipal bond rate would be less than several basis 
points (several hundredths of one percent). 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 
A Single Discount Rate of 3.91% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the 
SCLTDITF.  The Single Discount Rate was based on an expected rate of return on plan 
investments of 4.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.62%.  The projection of cash flows to 
determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that employer contributions will remain at $38.64 
per year for each covered active employee.  Based on these assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net 
position and future contributions were sufficient to finance the benefit payments through the year 
2037.  As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
project benefit payments through the year 2037, and the municipal bond rate was applied to all 
benefit payments after that date. 
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return represents assumptions developed using an arithmetic 
building block approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs.  
The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset 
allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2017 fiscal year.  The long-term expected rate of 
return is produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation 
percentage and adding expected inflation.  This information is summarized in the following 
table: 
 
                                                                                                                                  Allocation- 
                                                                                               Expected             Weighted Long- 
                                                               Target Asset    Arithmetic Real    Term Expected Real  
   Asset Class                                           Allocation       Rate of Return         Rate of Return 
        U.S. Domestic Fixed Income            80.00%    2.09%     1.67% 
        Cash equivalents             20.00%                0.84%      0.17% 
 
    Total            100.00%        1.84% 
 
        Expected Inflation           2.25%  
 
   Total Return            4.09% 
 
   Investment Return Assumption         4.00% 
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NOTE 7—POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS…continued 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
The following table presents the College’s proportionate share of the SCRHITF net OPEB 
liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 3.62%, as well as what the College’s share of 
the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1.00% 
lower (2.62%) or 1.00% higher (4.62%) than the current rate: 
 

Sensitivity of the SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Single Discount Rate 
 

Current 
1.00% Decrease (2.62%)     Discount Rate (3.62%)     1.00% Increase (4.62%) 

$7,209,438                        $6,119,567                        $5,241,045 
 
Regarding the sensitivity of the SCRHITF’s net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost 
trend rates, the following table presents the College’s share of the plan’s net OPEB liability, 
calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what the College’s share of the net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is 1.00% lower or 1.00% higher: 
 
Sensitivity of the SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

 
 Current Healthcare 

1.00% Decrease                 Cost Trend Rate                1.00% Increase 
$5,035,416                        $6,119,567                        $7,521,174 

 
The following table presents the College’s proportionate share of the SCLTDITF net OPEB 
liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 3.91%, as well as what the College’s share of 
the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single Discount Rate that is 1.00% 
lower (2.91%) or 1.00% higher (4.91%) than the current rate: 
 

Sensitivity of the SCLTDITF Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Single Discount Rate 
 

Current 
1.00% Decrease (2.91%)     Discount Rate (3.91%)     1.00% Increase (4.91%) 

$1,973                                  $1,320                                   $683 
 
Additional Financial and Actuarial Information 
Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is 
available in the trust funds’ audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  
Additional actuarial information is available in the accounting and financial reporting actuarial 
valuations as of June 30, 2018. 
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NOTE 8—CONTINGENCIES, LITIGATION, AND COMMITMENTS 
 
The College is party to various lawsuits arising out of the normal conduct of its operations.  In 
the opinion of College management, there are no material claims or lawsuits against the College 
that are not covered by insurance or whose settlement would materially affect the College’s 
financial position. 
 
The College participates in certain Federal grant programs. These programs are subject to 
financial and compliance audits by the grantor or its representative.  Such audits could lead to 
requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the 
grant.  Management believes disallowances, if any, will not be material. 
 
Necessary funding has been obtained for the acquisition, construction, renovation, and equipping 
of certain facilities, which will be capitalized in the applicable capital asset categories upon 
completion.  At June 30, 2019, the College had no remaining commitment balances with certain 
property owners, engineering firms, construction contractors, and vendors related to these 
projects.  The College anticipates funding these projects out of current resources, current and 
future bond issues, private gifts, student fees, and state capital improvement bond proceeds.   
 
 
NOTE 9—LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
Operating Leases 
The College leases copier and other equipment under cancelable operating leases, with the 
charges on most items based primarily or exclusively on usage.  In the normal course of 
business, operating leases are generally renewed or replaced by five year cancelable rental 
agreements and are generally payable on a monthly basis.  Rental agreements are due to expire 
from June 2020 to June 2024.  Operating lease payments made during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2019, totaled $83,937 to external parties and $22,110 to other State agencies. 
 
 
NOTE 10—LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows: 
 

July 1, 
2018 Additions Reductions 

June 30, 
2019 

Due 
Within 

One Year 

Accrued Compensated Absences     $ 309,711 $ 57,318    $(36,473)    $ 330,556   $ 53,587 

Total Long-Term Liabilities     $ 309,711   $ 57,318    $(36,473)        $ 330,556 $ 53,587 
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NOTE 11—RELATED ORGANIZATIONS, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, AND 
TRANSACTIONS WITH DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
 
Management reviewed its relationship with Denmark Technical College Foundation under the 
existing guidance of the GASB Codification. The College excluded this organization from the 
reporting entity because the Foundation’s assets are not significant to the College’s overall 
assets.   
 
Following is a more detailed discussion of the Foundation and a summary of significant 
transactions between the Foundation and the College for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
The Denmark Technical College Foundation 
The Foundation is a separately chartered corporation organized exclusively to receive and 
manage private funds for the exclusive benefit and support of the College.   The Foundation’s 
activities are governed by its Board of Directors. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Foundation had minimal financial activity, and the only 
transaction between the College and the Foundation was an $800 donation made by the 
Foundation to the College’s agency fund, which is included in the Statement of Net Position as 
the liability “funds held for others”. 
 
 
NOTE 12—RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss and maintains State or commercial insurance 
coverage for each of those risks. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude 
any significant uninsured losses for the covered risks.  Settlement claims have not exceeded this 
coverage in any of the past three years.   
 
The State of South Carolina believes it is more economical to manage certain risks internally and 
set aside assets for claim settlement.  Several State funds accumulate assets and the State itself 
assumes substantially all the risk for the following claims of covered employees: 
 

• Unemployment compensation benefits  
• Worker’s compensation benefits for job-related illnesses or injuries 
• Health and dental insurance benefits 
• Long-term disability and group-life insurance benefits 

 
Employees elect health insurance coverage through either a health maintenance organization or 
through the State’s self-insured plan. 
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NOTE 12—RISK MANAGEMENT…continued 
 
The College and other entities pay premiums to the State’s Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF), which 
issues policies, accumulates assets to cover the risk of loss, and pays claims incurred for covered 
losses relating to the following activities:  
 

• Theft, damage to, or destruction of assets 
• Real property, its contents, and other equipment 
• Motor vehicles and watercraft 
• Torts 
• Natural disasters 
• Medical malpractice claims against the Infirmary 

 
The IRF is a self-insurer and purchases reinsurance to obtain certain services and to limit losses 
in certain areas.  The IRF’s rates are determined actuarially. 
 
 
NOTE 13—OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
 
Operating expenses by functional classification for the year ended June 30, 2019, are 
summarized as follows: 
 
                 

 
 

Salaries 
 

Benefits 
 

Scholarships 
 

Utilities 

Supplies 
and Other 
Services 

 
Depreciation 

 
Total 

        
Instruction $1,612,651  $ 341,631    $              - $            - $      40,032 $                - $  1,994,314  

Academic Support      435,492           45,645                    -               -         71,872                   -        553,009 

Student Services      641,614     102,813                    -               -       183,328                   -         927,755 

Operation and                             
Maintenance of Plant 
 

                               
     284,373               

 
      29,914 

                                                                                                     
     - 

 
   456,086 
    

 
      478,214 
       

 
                  - 

 
    1,248,587 

Institutional Support      967,591     224,282                    -                -    1,641,738                   -     2,833,611 

Scholarships                 -                -         102,319                -                        -                   -        102,319 

Auxiliary Enterprises      235,215       50,265                           -      53,130                           554,090                   -                     892,700 

Depreciation                 -                   -                     -                -                  -        368,919          368,919           

Total Operating 
Expenses 

 
$4,176,936 

 
$  794,550 

 
   $   102,319 

 
$  509,216  

 
$ 2,969,274     

 
$     368,919        

 
$  8,921,214 
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NOTE 14—STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
 
The following information is required by the Office of the Comptroller General for the State of 
South Carolina’s comprehensive annual financial report: 
                                                                      Increase/ 
              2019                     2018                  (Decrease) 
Charges for Services    $    4,131,357         $ 4,888,131           $   (756,774) 
Non-Operating Revenues         1,599,627            1,877,556                (277,929) 
Less:  Expenses        (8,921,214)        (10,392,953)             1,471,739 
 
Net Program Revenue (Expense)      (3,190,230)          (3,627,266)                 437,036 
 
Transfers: 
   State Appropriations         2,132,251             2,659,859                (527,608) 
 
Change in Net Position       (1,057,979)             (967,407)                 (90,572) 
 
Net Position Beginning of Year      (9,537,899)             (142,384)            (9,395,515) 
Prior Period Adjustment                       -            (8,428,108)             8,428,108 
 
Net Position End of Year   $(10,595,878)        $(9,537,899)          $(1,057,979) 
 
 
NOTE 15—TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER AGENCIES 
 
The College had significant transactions with the State of South Carolina and various agencies. 
 
Services received at no cost from State agencies include maintenance of certain accounting 
records by the Comptroller General; check preparation, banking, bond trustee, and investment 
services from the State Treasurer; and legal services from the Attorney General. 
 
Other services received at no cost from various State agencies include pension plan 
administration, insurance plans administration, audit services, grant services, personnel 
management, assistance in the preparation of the State budget, review and approval of certain 
budget amendments, procurement services, and other centralized functions. 
 
 
NOTE 16—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The College evaluated subsequent events through October 14, 2019, which is the date the 
financial statements were available for issue. Events occurring after that date have not been 
evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements would be required.  
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NOTE 16—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS…continued 
 
In September 2019, the College was notified that its direct student loan default rate for the fiscal 
year 2016 was 43.8%.  As it was above 40%, the College is subject to the loss of eligibility to 
participate in the Direct Student Loan Program.  The College believes that there is data that is 
incorrect and, that once corrected, the default rate will be below 40%.  The College also believes 
that it meets several exceptions, and that it qualifies for the Economically Disadvantaged appeal.  
The College is working directly with the Department of Education’s Cohort Default Unit to 
complete their appeal and documentation of the exceptions. 
 
NOTE 17—GOVERNANCE AND CONTINUANCE OF COLLEGE OPERATIONS 
 
In May, 2017, the State of South Carolina enacted legislation removing the governing authority 
of the College’s Area Commission and transferring these powers to the State Board for Technical 
and Comprehensive Education.  This authority was extended until January 1, 2019, at which time 
the governing authority was returned to the Area Commission.  This action was taken after the 
State legislature concluded that the College would benefit by having the State Board provide 
direct leadership and assistance in areas such as enrollment, financial position, and program 
offerings more in line with the current job market and area employer needs.  An advisory 
committee was appointed and the State Board met with this committee, providing training and 
consultation in regards to meeting the SACSCOS recommendation for governance policies and 
by-law changes to be adopted.  This advisory board assumed governing authority as the Area 
Commission on January 1, 2019. 
 
In May, 2019, the State of South Carolina legislature passed legislation that kept the operating 
status of the College as a member institution of the South Carolina Technical College System.  
The College will continue to have access to the resources and support provided by the State 
legislature through the Technical College System.  The State Board has set aside an additional 
$2,000,000 as a contingency for Denmark Technical College for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020, should the College need additional support. 
 
Management has taken steps to improve the College’s stability and ability to meet its financial 
obligations. 
The College has met with the three local area governments to obtain increased financial support 
and has received commitments from the three counties to increase their financial funding and 
support. 
The College has continued to reduce staff and further reduce other costs to be more in line with 
the College’s current student enrollment. 
Management and staff have met with local area high schools to recruit students to increase 
enrollment and with local area industries to determine industry program and training needs in 
order to develop programs to meet these needs. 
The ability of the College to continue operations is dependent on the success of the plans 
outlined above. 
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College's College's
covered proportionate share Plan fiduciary

College's payroll of the net pension net position as
Year proportion of during liability as a a percentage

Ended the net pension measurement percentage of its of the total
June 30 liability period covered payroll pension liability

2019 0.035050% 7,853,647$     3,602,276$    218.02% 54.1%
2018 0.044269% 9,965,664        4,467,697      223.06% 53.3%
2017 0.048541% 10,368,286     4,616,622      224.59% 52.9%
2016 0.054609% 10,356,860     5,024,875      206.11% 57.0%
2015 0.051732% 8,906,535        4,706,622      189.23% 59.9%

College's College's
covered proportionate share Plan fiduciary

College's payroll of the net pension net position as
Year proportion of during liability as a a percentage

Ended the net pension measurement percentage of its of the total
June 30 liability period covered payroll pension liability

2019 0.003855% 109,243$         58,143$         187.89% 61.7%
2018 0.007809% 213,932           115,841         184.68% 60.9%
2017 0.009460% 239,951           120,608         198.95% 60.4%
2016 0.009860% 214,942           129,453         166.04% 64.6%
2015 0.014830% 283,910           179,847         157.86% 67.5%

Note:  This schedule is presented to satisfy the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which the information
is available.

Source:  Audit report on the schedules of employer allocations, schedules of pension amounts by employer,
and related notes to the South Carolina Retirement System, as administered by the SC Public Benefits
Authority for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Covered payroll:  The covered payroll presented above is for the measurement period used to determine
the employer allocations and schedules of pension amounts by employer recorded in the current period.

Police Officers Retirement System

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Schedule of the College's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (as available)

South Carolina Retirement System

College's
proportionate
share of the
net pension

liability

College's
proportionate
share of the
net pension

liability
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Contributions
as a

Year Contribution College percentage
Ended deficiency covered of covered

June 30 (excess) payroll payroll

2019 401,779$        (401,779)$       -$        3,147,562$  12.76%
2018 483,065          (483,065)         -          3,602,276    13.41%
2017 509,764          (509,764)         -          4,467,697    11.41%
2016 503,673          (503,673)         -          4,616,622    10.91%
2015 540,174          (540,174)         -          5,024,875    10.75%

Contributions
as a

Year Contribution College percentage
Ended deficiency covered of covered

June 30 (excess) payroll payroll

2019 6,787$            (6,787)$           -$        47,632$       14.25%
2018 9,210              (9,210)             -          58,143         15.84%
2017 16,032            (16,032)           -          115,841       13.84%
2016 16,089            (16,089)           -          120,608       13.34%
2015 16,842            (16,842)           -          129,453       13.01%

Note:  This schedule is presented to satisfy the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which the information
is available.

Source:  College's quarterly retirement contribution reports.

Covered payroll:  The covered payroll presented above is for the fiscal year ended as indicated above.

South Carolina Retirement System

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Schedule of College Retirement Contributions

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (as available)

Contributions

Contributions

in relation
to the

contractually
required

contribution

Police Officers Retirement System

Contractually
required

contribution

Contractually
required

contribution

in relation
to the

contractually
required

contribution
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College's College's
covered proportionate share Plan fiduciary

College's payroll of the net OPEB net position as
Year proportion of during liability as a a percentage

Ended the net OPEB measurement percentage of its of the total
June 30 liability period covered payroll OPEB liability

2019 0.043185% 6,119,567$     3,724,168$    164.32% 7.91%
2018 0.054354% 7,362,160        4,583,538      160.62% 7.60%
2017 0.054354% 7,864,280        4,737,230      166.01% 7.60%

College's College's
covered proportionate share Plan fiduciary

College's payroll of the net OPEB net position as
Year proportion of during liability as a a percentage

Ended the net OPEB measurement percentage of its of the total
June 30 liability period covered payroll OPEB liability

2019 0.043115% 1,320$             N/A N/A 92.20%
2018 0.053158% 964                  N/A N/A 95.29%
2017 0.053158% 369                  N/A N/A 95.29%

Note:  This schedule is presented to satisfy the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which the information
is available.

Source:  Audit report on the schedules of employer allocations, schedules of OPEB amounts by employer,
and related notes to the Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Funds, as administered by the SC Public
Benefits Authority, Insurance Benefits for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Covered payroll:  The covered payroll presented above is for the measurement period used to determine
the employer allocations and schedules of OPEB amounts by employer recorded in the current period.

South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Schedule of the College's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (as available)

South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund

College's
proportionate
share of the
net OPEB

liability

College's
proportionate
share of the
net OPEB

liability
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Contributions
as a

Year Contribution College percentage
Ended deficiency covered of covered

June 30 (excess) payroll payroll

2019 201,728$        (201,728)$       -$        3,334,354$     6.05%
2018 204,829          (204,829)         -          3,724,168       5.50%
2017 244,303          (244,303)         -          4,583,538       5.33%

Contributions
as a

Year Contribution College percentage
Ended deficiency covered of covered

June 30 (excess) payroll payroll

2019 2,734$            (2,734)$           -$        N/A N/A
2018 3,130              (3,130)             -          N/A N/A
2017 3,903              (3,903)             -          N/A N/A

Note:  This schedule is presented to satisfy the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However,
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which the information
is available.

Source:  College's quarterly retirement contribution reports.

Covered payroll:  The covered payroll presented above is for the fiscal year ended as indicated above.

South Carolina Retiree Health Insurance Trust Fund

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Schedule of College OPEB Contributions

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years (as available)

to the

Contributions
in relation

to the
Contractually contractually

required required
contribution contribution

South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund
Contributions

in relation

Contractually contractually
required required

contribution contribution
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CFDA Grant/Contract/ Expenditures
Federal Grantor/Program Title/Grant Title Number FAR Number FY 2019

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Student Financial Assistance
   Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) 84.007 2018-2019 106,000$        
   Federal Work Study Program (FWS) 84.033 2018-2019 166,031          
   Federal Pell Grant Program (Pell) 84.063 2018-2019 1,344,652       
   Federal Direct Student Loans Program 84.268 2018-2019 1,234,268       
     Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 2,850,951       

Higher Education Institutional Aid
   Title III - Strengthening Institutions 84.031B 2015-2016 3,376              
   Title III - Strengthening Institutions (Carryover) 84.031B 2016-2017 34,571            
   Title III - Strengthening Institutions 84.031B 2017-2018 267,922          
   Title III - Strengthening Institutions 84.031B 2018-2019 1,007,067       
   Title III - SAFRA 84.031B 2017-2018 74,958            
   Title III - SAFRA 84.031B 2018-2019 90,091            
   Title III - SAFRA (Carryover) 84.031B 2018-2019 416,563          
     Total Higher Education Institutional Aid 1,894,548       

   Upward Bound Program 84.047A 2018-2019 95,994            
     Total U.S. Department of Education Direct Programs 1,990,542       

Passed through the South Carolina Department of Education
   Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States (Perkins V) 84.048 2017-2018 17,684            
   Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States (Perkins V) 84.048 2018-2019 30,357            
     Total Passed throught the South Carolina Department of Education 48,041            

Passed through the South Carolina Department of Social Services
     TEACH Early Childhood South Carolina 84.379 2018-2019 8,691              
    Total Passed through the South Carolina Department of Social Services 8,691              
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 4,898,225       

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed through Norfolk State University
    National Nuclear Security Administration-Consortium for K-20 Cybersecurity Workforce Pipeline/Norfolk State 81.123 2015-2016 1,238              
    National Nuclear Security Administration-Consortium for K-20 Cybersecurity Workforce Pipeline/Norfolk State 81.123 2016-2017 31,493            
    National Nuclear Security Administration-Consortium for K-20 Cybersecurity Workforce Pipeline/Norfolk State 81.123 2017-2018 144,126          
    National Nuclear Security Administration-Consortium for K-20 Cybersecurity Workforce Pipeline/Norfolk State 81.123 2018-2019 4,795              
     Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 181,652          

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Pass through South Carolina State Board for Technical and Comprehensive Education
    U.S. Department of Labor/SC Technical College System SC Apprenticeship Initiative 17.268 2015-2020 37,500            
    U.S. Department of Labor/SC Technical College System SC Apprenticeship Evolved 17.285 2016-2019 12,804            
     Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 50,304            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 5,130,181$     

NOTES:
Significant Accounting Policies - This schedule was prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is  
recognized only to the extent expenditures are incurred during the fiscal year.

The College uses its federally approved indirect cost rate of 32.5%

DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2019



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
Members of the Area Commission 
Denmark Technical College 
Denmark, South Carolina 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of Denmark 
Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2019.  

 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Denmark Technical College, 
Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Denmark Technical College, 
Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified.  We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2019-001 that we consider to be a material weakness. 
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Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South 
Carolina’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as items 2019-002, 2019-003, and 2019-004. 

 

Denmark Technical College’s Response to Findings 

Denmark Technical College’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
corrective action plan.  Denmark Technical College’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

 
Purpose of this Report  
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Orangeburg, South Carolina 
October 14, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
 
Members of the Area Commission 
Denmark Technical College 
Denmark, South Carolina  

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  
We have audited Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2019. Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs.  

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, 
South Carolina’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Denmark Technical College, 
Denmark, South Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, 
South Carolina’s compliance.  

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
(continued) 

 
 

 

Other Matters  

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2019-003 and 2019-004. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified 
with respect to these matters. 

Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our 
audit is described in the accompanying corrective action plan. Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South 
Carolina’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
Management of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South 
Carolina’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Denmark Technical College, Denmark, South Carolina’s internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-002, 
2019-003, and 2019-004 that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

Denmark Technical College’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying corrective action plan.  Denmark Technical College’s response was not subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 
Orangeburg, South Carolina 
October 14, 2019 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DENMARK, SOUTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
SECTION A.  

 
Financial Statements Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
1.) Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 
 
2.) Internal controls over financial reporting: 

a.) Material weakness identified? Yes 
b.) Significant deficiencies identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses? No 
 

3.) Noncompliance material to financial statements 
 noted? Yes 
 
Federal Awards 
 
1.) Internal control over major programs: 

a.) Material weakness identified? No 
b.) Significant deficiencies identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses? Yes 
 
2.) Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance  

for major programs: Unmodified 
 
3.) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 

be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance? Yes 
 

4.) Identification of major programs: 
 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program 
 

 Student Financial Assistance Cluster: 
84.007 Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants 

 84.033 Federal Work Study Program 
 84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program 
 84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans 
  

5.) Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs? $750,000 
 

6.) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under 
the Uniform Guidance? No 
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DENMARK TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DENMARK, SOUTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
B. Financial Statement Finding 
 
Finding 2019-001 Material Audit Adjustment 

 
Criteria:  Sound internal control over financial reporting requires that there be in place adequate 
controls over the selection and application of accounting principles that are in conformity with U.S. 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
 
Condition: The College’s unadjusted financial statements reported a material misstatement of cash 
disbursement and the related expenditures and a significant misstatement of a grant receivable and 
the related revenue. 
 
Effect: The unadjusted financial statements would have been materially misstated in these accounts 
had the auditing procedures not detected the misstatements, and the College staff then performed 
the additional procedures to determine the appropriate adjustments needed to correct the 
misstatement.   
 
Cause:  The College's internal controls failed to detect material errors in processing, recording and 
reporting of cash disbursements and a grant receivable and the corresponding revenues and 
expenses. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should evaluate the process used to close the monthly and year-
end accounting records to insure an accurate and timely close-out process.  The College should 
have procedures in place to assure the proper recording of cash disbursements and grant 
receivables, and the corresponding revenues and expenses.  Reconciliations should be performed 
monthly to underlying supporting documentation.  Differences should be investigated and 
corrections and adjustments made as necessary. 
 

 
C. Compliance and Other Matters 
 
Finding 2019-002 Cash Management of Federal Award Program 
 

Criteria:  Cash management guidelines under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Condition:  Federal funds were drawn down for the Title III Strengthening Institutions and SAFRA 
carryover funds, Grant CFDA# 84031B, for which checks were written but not issued and later 
voided. 
 
Effect:  Violation of cash management guidelines for federal funds. 
 
Cause:  The procurement process for the expenditures was completed in expectation that the 
services and equipment purchased would be installed and completed within a timely manner.  The 
individual requesting the funds did not authorize release of the checks pending completion of the 
services and installation of equipment.  The personnel preparing the drawdown of funds obtained 
the cash disbursement records and support and requested the draw down of the funds without 
knowledge that the checks had not been issued. 
 
Recommendation:  Grant administrators should inform the requestor of grant funds of the cash 
management guidelines under the Uniform Guidance rules and the specific performance guidelines 
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for a particular grant.  The procurement package should not be submitted for payment until the 
performance of services, receipt of items purchased, and installation of item purchase is completed. 
 

D. Major Federal Award Findings 
 
Finding 2019-003 Finding Related to Compliance and Internal Controls over Compliance 
 

U.S. Department of Education Title IV funds under CFDA#’s: 
 

84.007 – Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2018-2019 
84.033 – Federal Work-Study Program 2018-2019 
84.063 – Federal Pell Grant Program 2018-2019 
84.268 – Federal Direct Student Loans 2018-2019 
 
Title IV Funds not returned to the Department of Education within the 45 days of the last 
date of attendance as determined by the College. 
 
Criteria:  Returns of Title IV funds are required to be deposited or transferred into the SFA account 
or electronic funds transfer initiated to ED as soon as possible, but no later than 45 days after the 
date the institution determines that the student withdrew. 
 
An institution must determine the withdrawal date for a student who withdraws without providing 
notification to the institution no later than 30 days after the end of the earlier of the (1) payment 
period or period of enrollment, (2) academic year in which the student withdrew, or (3) educational 
program from which the student withdrew. 
 
Condition:  We tested 20 percent of the list provided of students withdrawing during the period 
for the calculation and timing of the return of the Title IV funds due back to ED.  Six students were 
tested.  The sampling was a statistically valid sample.  The calculation of the return of funds was 
correct.  For three of the six tested, the return of funds was made beyond the 45 day requirement.   
 
This is a repeat finding which was initially reported with the additional compliance audit 
procedures for June 30, 2015. 
 
Effect:  Return of Title IV funds not done within the required timeframe. 
 
Cause:  Unknown 
 
Known or questioned costs:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should take care in processing the return of Title IV funds in a 
timely manner. 
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Finding 2019-004 Finding Related to Compliance and Internal Controls over Compliance 
 

U.S. Department of Education Title IV funds under CFDA#’s: 
 

84.007 – Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2018-2019 
84.033 – Federal Work-Study Program 2018-2019 
84.063 – Federal Pell Grant Program 2018-2019 
84.268 – Federal Direct Student Loans 2018-2019 
 
The institution was not reconciling the SAS data files to institutional records each month. 
 
Criteria:  Institutions must report all loan disbursements and submit required records to COD 
within 15 days of disbursement. Each month, the COD provides institutions with a School Account 
Statement (SAS) data file which consists of a Cash Summary, Cash Detail, and Loan Detail records 
(optional). This school is required to reconcile these files to the institution’s financial records. 
 
Condition:  During our testing procedures, it was brought to our attention that the institution was 
not reconciling the SAS data files to institutional records each month. The former Director of 
Financial Aid was brought back in to help reconcile the SAS to loan records which resulted in 
journal entries being made and funds being applied to student accounts well after year-end. 
 
Effect:  Dates and amounts of disbursements to students were not supported by the institution’s 
records on individual borrowers. 
 
Cause:  Financial Aid function was outsourced and there was a lack of communication between 
the contractor and the College. Staff did not reconcile SAS data files to institution records each 
month. 
 
Known or questioned costs:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should have process in place to ensure the SAS reconciliations 
are completed in a timely manner. 
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Finding 2018-1 Receivables and Related Revenues and Expenses 

 
Condition: The College failed to apply lottery tuition assistance awards to the student accounts 
receivable or submit for reimbursements from the lottery program for the lottery tuition assistance 
awards available to the students.  Additionally, the College failed to evaluate the collectability of 
the balance remaining in a construction grant receivable at the completion of the project. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should evaluate the process used to close the monthly and year-
end accounting records to insure an accurate and timely close-out process.  The College should 
have procedures in place to assure the proper recording of student accounts receivable, lottery 
tuition assistance, grant receivables, and the corresponding revenues and expenses.  Reconciliations 
should be performed monthly to underlying supporting documentation.  Differences should be 
investigated and corrections and adjustments made as necessary. 
 
 
Current Status:  This condition has been corrected.  
 

FINDINGS RELATED TO COMPLIANCE  

Finding 2018-2 Finding Related to Compliance and Internal Controls over Compliance 
 
Condition:  We tested 20 percent of the list provided of students withdrawing during the period 
for the calculation and timing of the return of the Title IV funds due back to ED.  Eleven students 
were tested.  The sampling was a statistically valid sample.  The calculation of the return of funds 
was correct.  For four of the eleven tested, the return of funds was made beyond the 45 day 
requirement.   
 
Recommendation:  The College should take care in processing the return of Title IV funds in a 
timely manner. 
 
Current Status:  This condition has not been corrected. 2019-003. 
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The Corrective A ction Plan, as required by the Uniform Guidance and as a result of our 2019 annual 
audit reflects the  following: 

 
 

Finding 2019-001 Material Audit Adjustment 
 
Criteria:  Sound internal control over financial reporting requires that there be in place adequate controls over 
the selection and application of accounting principles that are in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. 
 
Condition: The College’s unadjusted financial statements reported a material misstatement of cash 
disbursement and the related expenditures and a significant misstatement of a grant receivable and the related 
revenue. 
 
Effect: The unadjusted financial statements would have been materially misstated in these accounts had the 
auditing procedures not detected the misstatements, and the College staff then performed the additional 
procedures to determine the appropriate adjustments needed to correct the misstatement.   
 
Cause:  The College's internal controls failed to detect material errors in processing, recording and reporting 
of cash disbursements and a grant receivable and the corresponding revenues and expenses. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should evaluate the process used to close the monthly and year-end 
accounting records to insure an accurate and timely close-out process.  The College should have procedures in 
place to assure the proper recording of cash disbursements and grant receivables, and the corresponding 
revenues and expenses.  Reconciliations should be performed monthly to underlying supporting 
documentation.  Differences should be investigated and corrections and adjustments made as necessary. 
 
 
College Response and Corrective Action Plan:  The College concurs with the finding. 
Staff turnover in a few key positions resulted in temporary delays and lack of timely, complete communication 
between departments to facilitate an accurate and timely closeout.  Reconciliations continue to be performed 
monthly with adjustments made as needed, and College management will continue to evaluate the closeout 
process for possible improvement and will provide sufficient oversight to ensure adequate communication 
between departments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Denmark Technical College , Post Office Box 327 , Denmark, South Carolina 29042 USA               www.denmarktech.edu 
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Finding 2019-002 Cash Management of Federal Award Program 
 

Criteria:  Cash management guidelines under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Condition:  Federal funds were drawn down for the Title III Strengthening Institutions and SAFRA carryover 
funds, Grant CFDA# 84031B, for which checks were written but not issued and later voided. 
 
Effect:  Violation of cash management guidelines for federal funds. 
 
Cause:  The procurement process for the expenditures was completed in expectation that the services and 
equipment purchased would be installed and completed within a timely manner.  The individual requesting the 
funds did not authorize release of the checks pending completion of the services and installation of equipment.  
The personnel preparing the drawdown of funds obtained the cash disbursement records and support and 
requested the draw down of the funds without knowledge that the checks had not been issued. 
 
Recommendation:  Grant administrators should inform the requestor of grant funds of the cash management 
guidelines under the Uniform Guidance rules and the specific performance guidelines for a particular grant.  
The procurement package should not be submitted for payment until the performance of services, receipt of 
items purchased, and installation of item purchase is completed. 
 
 
College Response and Corrective Action Plan:  The College concurs with the finding. 
College management has reinforced previous instruction to appropriate personnel responsible for grants, 
procurement and cash disbursement concerning federal cash management and procurement guidelines and 
requirements to prevent possible future reoccurrences. 
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Finding 2019-003 Finding Related to Compliance and Internal Controls over Compliance 
 

U.S. Department of Education Title IV funds under CFDA#’s: 
 

84.007 – Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2018-2019 
84.033 – Federal Work-Study Program 2018-2019 
84.063 – Federal Pell Grant Program 2018-2019 
84.268 – Federal Direct Student Loans 2018-2019 
 
Title IV Funds not returned to the Department of Education within the 45 days of the last date of 
attendance as determined by the College. 
 
Criteria:  Returns of Title IV funds are required to be deposited or transferred into the SFA account or 
electronic funds transfer initiated to ED as soon as possible, but no later than 45 days after the date the 
institution determines that the student withdrew. 
 
An institution must determine the withdrawal date for a student who withdraws without providing 
notification to the institution no later than 30 days after the end of the earlier of the (1) payment period or 
period of enrollment, (2) academic year in which the student withdrew, or (3) educational program from 
which the student withdrew. 
 
Condition:  We tested 20 percent of the list provided of students withdrawing during the period for the 
calculation and timing of the return of the Title IV funds due back to ED.  Six students were tested.  The 
sampling was a statistically valid sample.  The calculation of the return of funds was correct.  For three of 
the six tested, the return of funds was made beyond the 45 day requirement.   
 
This is a repeat finding which was initially reported with the additional compliance audit  
procedures for June 30, 2015. 
 
Effect:  Return of Title IV funds not done within the required timeframe. 
 
Cause:  Unknown 
 
Known or questioned costs:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should take care in processing the return of Title IV funds in a timely 
manner. 
 
 
College Response and Corrective Action Plan:  The College concurs with the finding. 
Denmark Technical College agrees with this finding and recommendation and is strengthening its 
current procedures to ensure the timely return of unearned funds no later than 45 days from the 
determination of a student's withdrawal. 
Corrective action is being taken to modify the current procedures to streamline the turnaround time 
from the point the Financial Aid Office provides the Business Office with the Return of Funds 
Calculations. We have established a better tracking system utilizing a weekly student withdrawals 
report and a report of All F's will be created at the end of the semester, submitted by the Registrar's 
Office. The reports will be used to ensure calculations are processed accurately and within the 
required timeframe. The corrective actions are in effect immediately. 
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Finding 2019-004 Finding Related to Compliance and Internal Controls over Compliance 
 

U.S. Department of Education Title IV funds under CFDA#’s: 
 

84.007 – Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2018-2019 
84.033 – Federal Work-Study Program 2018-2019 
84.063 – Federal Pell Grant Program 2018-2019 
84.268 – Federal Direct Student Loans 2018-2019 
 
The institution was not reconciling the SAS data files to institutional records each month. 
 
Criteria:  Institutions must report all loan disbursements and submit required records to COD 
within 15 days of disbursement. Each month, the COD provides institutions with a School Account 
Statement (SAS) data file which consists of a Cash Summary, Cash Detail, and Loan Detail records 
(optional). This school is required to reconcile these files to the institution’s financial records. 
 
Condition:  During our testing procedures, it was brought to our attention that the institution was 
not reconciling the SAS data files to institutional records each month. The former Director of 
Financial Aid was brought back in to help reconcile the SAS to loan records which resulted in 
journal entries being made and funds being applied to student accounts well after year-end. 
 
Effect:  Dates and amounts of disbursements to students were not supported by the institution’s 
records on individual borrowers. 
 
Cause:  Financial Aid function was outsourced and there was a lack of communication between the 
contractor and the College. Staff did not reconcile SAS data files to institution records each month. 
 
Known or questioned costs:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  The College should have process in place to ensure the SAS reconciliations 
are completed in a timely manner. 

 
 

College Response and Corrective Action Plan: We concur with the auditors finding. 
The College experienced staff turnover in Financial Aid and the Business Office during fiscal year 
2018-2019. In June 2018, the College outsourced its Financial Aid services to an outside vendor 
(Weber & Associates). This led to a breakdown of communication between the remaining Financial 
Aid staff on campus and the contractor.  The contract with Weber & Associates was terminated at the 
end of June 2019 primarily due to the lack of communication and timely reconciliations not being 
prepared. A new Financial Aid Director has been hired and reconciliations are now up to date. The 
College will continue to follow its procedures in documenting that these reconciliations are completed 
in a timely manner. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON 
STATE LOTTERY TUITION ASSISTANCE 

 
 
Members of the Area Commission 
Denmark Technical College 
Denmark, South Carolina 
  
 
As a part of our examination of the financial statements of Denmark Technical College as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2019, we reviewed the administrative procedures and internal control related to the 
State Lottery Tuition Assistance Program to determine that the College administered the program in 
accordance with State law and Policy 3-2-307 and Procedure 3-2-307.1 of the State Board for Technical 
and Comprehensive Education. 
 
A random sample of 40 students was selected from the College’s list of financial aid students. 
 
We reviewed the individual files maintained in the financial aid office of each applicant selected to 
determine that they contained all necessary information and documentation to determine eligibility.  We 
also reviewed to determine that any lottery tuition assistance awarded did not exceed the remaining cost 
of tuition and academic fees for the applicable semester after first applying Pell grants, FSEOG, SC 
Need-Based grants, and other applicable grants. 
 
All students who applied for assistance under the Lottery Tuition Assistance Program were awarded 
financial aid.  As a result, we did not select a sample of students deemed ineligible for the Lottery Tuition 
Assistance Program for purposes of determining that the students were granted the right to appeal the 
decision by submitting a written request to the institution’s Director of Financial Aid, and determining that 
the students’ requests were handled in accordance with the institution’s financial aid procedures. 
 
For students awarded aid under the Lottery Tuition Assistance Program, we traced amounts to the 
student account detail to determine that the awarded amounts were identifiably credited to the student’s 
account. 
 
In our opinion the State Lottery Tuition Assistance Program has been administered in accordance with 
State law and Policy 3-2-307 and Procedure 3-2-307.1 of the State Board for Technical and 
Comprehensive Education. 
 
This report is intended solely for the use of management of the Denmark Technical College, Members of 
the Denmark Technical College Area Commission, management of the State Board for Technical and 
Comprehensive Education, and management of the South Carolina Commission on Higher Education 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 

 
 
Orangeburg, South Carolina 
October 14, 2019 
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